
  

 

Meeting: Tualatin Valley Highway Safety and Transit Project Steering Committee 

Date: Thursday, February 13, 2025 

Time: 4:00 to 5:15 p.m. 

Place: Washington County Public Services Building 
 155 N 1st Ave, Hillsboro, OR; Room 120 D 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85447158636?pwd=HF8zQcAx8a9I9yy1ORxt8XzusFUwMQ.1 
Passcode: 031304; Webinar ID: 854 4715 8636 

 
Purpose: Project staff will share updates on anticipated next steps in the Project Development 

phase. Steering Committee members will discuss and vote on the locally preferred 
alternative (LPA) and funding strategy.  

Outcomes: Steering Committee members vote to recommend LPA and funding strategy to the 
adopting bodies, completing their charge as described in the TV Highway Steering 
Committee Charter.   

4:00 p.m. Welcome and introductions 
• Are there any updates related to TV Highway you’d like 

to share from your community?  

Metro Councilor Juan 
Carlos González 

4:10 p.m. Approval of January meeting minutes Councilor González 

4:15 p.m. Project next steps 
• Plans for design and engagement in next phase 
• NEPA process overview 
• Discussion and questions 

Bernadette Le, TriMet 
Kate Hawkins, Metro 
 

4:30 pm 
 

Staff LPA recommendation & funding strategy 
• Recap staff recommendation of locally preferred 

alternative (LPA) and funding strategy 
• Discussion and questions 

Jess Zdeb, Metro 
Dave Aulwes, TriMet 
 

5:00 pm 
 
 

Steering committee LPA & funding strategy vote 
• Vote to approve the LPA recommendation and 

funding strategy 
• Discussion  

Councilor González 

5:05 p.m. Public comment Councilor González 

5:15 p.m. Adjourn Councilor González 

In the event of unsolvable technical difficulties, the host will end the meeting and email a new link to committee members. 
Public participants may request the link by emailing Yuliya.lee@oregonmetro.gov. 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85447158636?pwd=HF8zQcAx8a9I9yy1ORxt8XzusFUwMQ.1
mailto:Yuliya.lee@oregonmetro.gov


Metro respects civil rights 
Metro fully complies with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act , Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act and other 
statutes that ban discrimination. If any person believes they have been discriminated against regarding the receipt of benefits or services because of race, color, 
national origin, sex, age or disability, they have the right to file a complaint with Metro. For information on Metro's civil rights program, or to obtain a discrimination 
complaint form, visit oregonmetro.gov/civilrights or call 503-797-1890. Metro provides services or accommodations upon request to persons with disabilities and 
people who need an interpreter at public meetings. If you need a sign language interpreter, communication aid or language assistance, call 503-797-1890 or TDD/TTY 
503-797-1804 (8 a.m. to 5 p.m. weekdays) 5 business days before the meeting. All Metro meetings are wheelchair accessible. Individuals with service animals are 
welcome at Metro facilities, even where pets are generally prohibited. For up-to-date public transportation information, visit TriMet's website at trimet.org 

Thong bao ve S\f Metro khong ky thj cua 
Metro tOn trong dan quy'en. Mu0n biet them th6ng tin ve chLtang trlnh d§n quyen 
cua Metro, ho�c muon lay dan khieu n9i ve S\1 ky thi, xin xem trong 
www.oregonmetro.gov/civilrights. Neu quy vj can thong djch vien ra dau bang tay, 
trQ' giup ve tiep xuc hay ng6n ngli', xin goi so 503-797-1700 (tu' 8 gia sang den 5 gia 
chieu vao nhli'ng ngay thU'ang) trvoc buoi hop 5 ngay lam viec. 

nosiAOM/leHHR Metro npo 3a6opoHy AHCKPHMiHau,ii 

Metro 3 noearo!O CTaBHTbCA AO rpoMaARHCbKHX npae. A,lR OTpHMaHHA iHcf>opMau,ii 
npo nporpaMy Metro i3 3ax111cry rpoMaARHCbKHX npae a6o 4,>opMH CKaprn npo 
A•c•paMiHat1i10 BiABiAaihe cai:ir www.oregonmetro.gov/civilrights. a6o R•1110 aaM 
norpi6eH nepeK/laAaY Ha 36opax, AJIR 33AOBO/leHHR eaworo 3an111ry 3are11e<t,0Hy�re 
3a HOMepoM 503-797-1700 3 8.00 AO 17 .00 y po6o"i AHi 3a n'ATb po6o""' AHiB AO 
36opia. 

Metro ®T�i-� 

$1Il!x-llll • W:�MMetro!x-llllHiri®�ff,f ' lilG�ll!<�:filt.ltm:� ' ffl'i�'.il'.�J'.r,!i 
www.oregonmetro.gov/civilrights • il!JJ;f!//!;�ll\l□�1JoJ�/J□0��1:l'i • ro'itE� 
i:i'iBllllii1!5@-!'t� BliUT503-797-
1700 (If'FBJ::'F-8:!'K�T'F-5!!',';) • P)fil!fli: fi'l;m�!/ril'.!"1ll\l3J< • 

Ogeysiiska takooris la'aanta ee Metro 
Metro waxay ixtiraamtaa xuquuqda madaniga. Si aad u heshid macluumaad ku 
saabsan barnaamijka xuquuqda madaniga ee Metro, ama aad u heshid warqadda ka 
cabashada takoorista, booqo www.oregonmetro.gov/civilrights. Haddii aad u baahan 
tahay turjubaan si aad uga qaybqaadatid kullan dadweyne, wac 503-797-1700 (8 
gallinka hore illaa 5 gallinka dambe maalmaha shaqada) shan maalmo shaqo ka hor 
kullanka si loo tixgaliyo codsashadaada. 

Metro.2J ;;p� ii-?:] -i'!:� �-"l-"i 

MetroQ.J Al 'i!-t:! !£.£.:J..!JOll rij� �J.!l !EC ;tt� -BJ-Ql;.i 0J:�% �52..2;j�, �"C' 
::<t':! <>ii c� � -m-'ll-% {!:i1 � ?www.oregonmetro.gov/civilrights. 'i!-{! !!I 'l:l 01

-"l-'il 01 >Q.a � 7,l�, � .2J<>il �Ai 5 'lJ � � (.£..f 5-"I ?¾<>ii .£.� 8-"I) 503-797-
1700{1- :2:½�t..lc:J-. 

MetroO)�_j)Utilifi� 

Metro"{'(;t0Rtmi-!W:!IH, n, £-t • Metro<1.)0!xtft7"o 7" 7 L>-1:Jl!]-t M,/i¥f,l 
(: ·::n > Z , £ t;:(;t�YJIJ'i§t,'/7 ,t-L,.i" A-'f-1" Q 1:(;t , www.oregonmetro.gov/ 
civilrights • £ c't-511\J!< t: c'! ,>0flll�ffic'a�jj\j\1R�<!Z,ll\l /:: c'! tL Q1]/;t: , 
Metrot.)I ;:"ll\lm1:xt�-r: � Q J: ? , 0/#1�1:i'i0511tm BM£ "{'(:503-797-
1700 (:i!ZB'Fii1!8�~!ff$:Sfey) ,J:l.':}311[�;!;< tt.�,, •

\hlt.Fii:::s:aniitsHfif'ilsi;is,Thluitssu.:S Metro 
F'l1llF'11mrti§nnm,HuN � ;;:,nu11Fi1=nsHl'i,-;1=1lari'.i§nnmelluN Metro 

- 1,J�S�s'ilrurn,-;JuCJ1itl1iru1Hti ty1=1grusrqjsi1F1U1s111 
www.oregonmetro.gov/civilrightsi 

IUHIJ1Fi!;1FiffjlP111!;fFiUFiltu1">1MlsimruH\;l 
l}J9Mmmn: ry1=1�1rJi;:i1=1,-;1rue 503-797-1700 (18-.tl 8 Lri,-;iaru181tl s ')!IG 

l£!19P111) Lciri1l£i 
l£!191"111 cfSl£iLUc'!IS1=1jH1GlsJ\FiNL¥,nlf"i11=!1\J\M!UNH\JlFi!;fFi, 

Metro .:,,, .;;.,..i1 ,� �! 
"� ti>,'/ ,i .,.,,.i1 .;fa,-ll Metro �t..y J_,.. ..:..t.._,l....11.:,. ;,,__;.ll _.,.,,.i, .;µ,Metro?_;..:, 
<..,1.>., ..:...;$ .:,! .www.oregonmetro.gov/civilrights .;,,yi,l'!• �_,.l• O)-,j<r"Y- ,.►-.,)1,.., 

� i.,.1_;.., 8 �l..JI .:,.) 503-797-1700 �1.,Jy Wi. Jl..wYI d,k ..,,,.-, ,WI.) il<>I... .,)) 
.tW,..YI :,c._,..:,. J.-. r4i (5) .__;_ J,; (l....eJI <>1! �YI r4i ,i,1- 5 �l..JI 

Paunawa ng Metro sa kawalan ng diskriminasyon 
lginagalang ng Metro ang mga karapatang sibil. Para sa impormasyon tungkol sa 
programa ng Metro sa mga karapatang sibil, o upang makakuha ng porma ng 
reklamo sa diskriminasyon, bisitahin ang www.oregonmetro.gov/civilrights. Kung 
kailangan ninyo ng interpreter ng wika sa isang pampublikong pulong, tumawag sa 
503-797-1700 (8 a.m. hanggang 5 p.m. Lunes hanggang Biyernes) lima araw ng 
trabaho bago ang pulong upang mapagbigyan ang inyong kahilingan. 

Notificaci6n de no discriminaci6n de Metro 

Metro respeta los derechos civiles. Para obtener informaci6n sobre el programa de 
derechos civiles de Metro o para obtener un formulario de reclamo por 
discriminaci6n, ingrese a www.oregonmetro.gov/civilrights . Si necesita asistencia 
con el idioma, Ila me al 503-797-1700 (de 8:00 a. m. a 5:00 p. m. los dias de semana) 
5 dfas laborales antes de la asamblea. 

YBeAOM/leMMe O MeAonyu,.eHMM AMCKpMMMH3l4MM OT Metro 
Metro yea>+<aer rpa>KJJ.aMctrne npaea. Y3HaTb o nporpaMMe Metro no co611t0AeHMt0 
rpa>KJ),3HCKl-1X npae 1-1 nonyYl-1Tb 4>opMy >K3Jl06bl O AIIICKPl-1MHHa41-11-1 MO>t<HO Ha ee6-
cai1re www.oregonmetro.gov/civilrights. Ec111,,1 eaM Hy>t<eH nepeBOAYl-1K Ha 
o6�ecTBeHHOM co6paH1111-1, ocraebTe csoM 3anpoc, no3BOHHB no HOMepy 503-797-
1700 8 pa60YMe AHH C 8:00 AO 17:00 1-1 3a nATb pa60YMX AHeM AO AaTbl co6paHHA. 

Avizul Metro privind nediscriminarea 
Metro respecta drepturile civile. Pentru informatii cu privire la programul Metro 
pentru drepturi civile sau pentru a obtine un formular de reclamatie impotriva 
discriminarii, vizitati www.oregonmetro.gov/civilrights. Daca aveti nevoie de un 
interpret de limba la o iedin\a publica, suna\i la 503-797-1700 (intre orele 8 ii 5, in 
timpul zilelor lucratoare) cu cinci zile lucratoare inainte de iedin\a, pentru a putea sa 
va raspunde In mod favorabil la cerere. 

Metro txoj kev ntxub ntxaug daim ntawv ceeb toom 
Metro tributes cai. Rau cov lus qhia txog Metro txoj cai kev pab, los yog kom sau ib 
daim ntawv tsis txaus siab, mus saib www.oregonmetro.gov/civilrights. Yog hais tias 
koj xav tau lus kev pab, hu rau 503-797-1700 (8 teev sawv ntxov txog 5 teev tsaus 
ntuj weekdays) 5 hnub ua hauj lwm ua ntej ntawm lub rooj sib tham. 

January 2021 



TV Highway Steering Committee Meeting Minutes from January 23, 2025 Page 1 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Location: Hybrid meeting held at Hillsboro Civic Center, Conference room 414, 150 E Main Street, 
 Hillsboro, OR 97213 and via Zoom webinar 

 

Members, Alternates Attending Affiliate 
Councilor Juan Carlos González, Co-chair Metro 
Councilor Gerritt Rosenthal, Co-chair Metro 
Councilor Brian Schimmel     City of Forest Grove 
Councilor Ashley Hartmeier-Prigg City of Beaverton 
Mayor Jeffrey Dalin City of Cornelius 
Councilor Cristian Salgado City of Hillsboro 
Commissioner Nafisa Fai Washington County 
Rian Windsheimer ODOT 
JC Vannatta TriMet 
Je Ameichi Unite Oregon 
Karmen Chavez-Sam APANO 
Nansi Lopez Centro Cultural 
Verónika Nuñez     Adelante Mujeres 

 
Members, Alternates Absent    Affiliate 

 
Panelists Attending Affiliate 
Jess Zdeb Metro 
Kate Hawkins Metro 
David Aulwes TriMet 
Bernadette Le TriMet 

 
 

Welcome and introductions (Councilor Juan Carlos González, Metro) 
Councilor Juan Carlos González, Metro, called meeting to order at 4:24 p.m. The meeting start time 
was delayed due to technical difficulties. Councilor González thanked the City of Hillsboro for hosting 
the meeting and welcomed the attendees. He welcomed new members of the Steering Committee, 
which included Je Ameichi from Unite Oregon, Hillsboro City Councilor Cristian Salgado, and Forest 
Grove City Councilor Brian Schimmel. New members proceeded to introduce themselves. 
 
Councilor González gave a brief overview of the agenda items and shared updates pertaining to the 
TV Highway corridor. He shared that there was one fatal crash on TV Highway that occurred at the 
end of 2024 and invited committee members to share their updates related to the project.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Meeting: Tualatin Valley Highway Steering Committee Meeting 

Date/Time: Thursday, January 23, 2025 | 4:00 p.m. to 6:00 p.m. 



TV Highway Steering Committee Meeting Minutes from January 23, 2025 Page 2 
  

 
Cornelius Mayor Jeffrey Dalin noted that there were additional crashes that left two people in serious 
condition and noted the importance of using marked crosswalks. Commissioner Nafisa Fai 
commended Stephen Roberts and staff from Washington County for their hard work to support the 
County’s funding contribution to the project.  
 
Approval of November 14, 2024 meeting minutes (Councilor Juan Carlos González, Metro) asked the 
committee for approval of the meeting summary from November 14, 2024.  
 
MOTION: JC Vannatta, TriMet, moved to approve the minutes. Mayor Jeffrey Dalin, seconded the 
motion. 
 
ACTION: With all in favor, the motion passed unanimously and included all the present members of the 
committee: Councilor Juan Carlos González, Metro, Councilor Gerritt Rosenthal, Metro, Councilor Brian 
Schimmel, City of Forest Grove, Councilor Ashley Hartmeier-Prigg, City of Beaverton, Mayor Jeffrey 
Dalin, City of Cornelius, Councilor Cristian Salgado, City of Hillsboro, Commissioner Nafisa Fai, 
Washington County, Rian Windsheimer, ODOT, JC Vannatta, TriMet, Je Ameichi, Unite Oregon, Nansi 
Lopez, Centro Cultural, Verónika Nuñez, Adelante Mujeres, Karmen Chavez-Sam, APANO. 
 
Presentation: Staff LPA recommendation (Jess Zdeb, Metro, David Aulwes, TriMet) 
Jess Zdeb started the presentation with an overview of the project’s previous milestones and Steering 
Committee decisions, which included: 

• Past planning efforts on TV Highway 
• Purpose and need and existing conditions reports 
• Three phases of public outreach 
• Design & cost refinement 
• July 2024 Steering Committee decision to pursue CIG project 

 
Jess highlighted the TV Highway Equity Coalition (TEC) and their past and current work to ensure 
priority efforts will come to fruition and assist the community with corridor investments. 
 
David Aulwes introduced main components of the recommended Locally Preferred Alternative (LPA), 
that included mode, alignment/route, and general station locations. He stated that funding plan would 
include an agreement of project partners to come together for $100M non-CIG local match and request 
$50M from the state as part of 2025 legislative session. He continued with an overview of the 
recommended mode, Bus Rapid Transit (BRT), which would bring the following improvements: 

• Improved speed and reliability: transit signal priority, bus priority treatments, consolidated 
stops 

• Stations with consistent amenities: shelters, lighting, arrival information 
• Accessible stations 

 
David Aulwes presented the proposed LPA map and stated that the recommended route primarily 
follows TV Highway between Forest Grove to Beaverton Transit Center.  
 



TV Highway Steering Committee Meeting Minutes from January 23, 2025 Page 3 
  

Jess Zdeb continued with a brief overview of recommended general station locations, which included: 
• General station locations identified based on technical analysis, community engagement, and 

stakeholder input 
• Consolidation of close proximity & low ridership stops 
• Average station spacing of ~1/3 mile 
• 85 station locations (downtown Cornelius stations TBD) 

 
She elaborated on the central Cornelius station locations, noting that the project team is continuing 
conversations with City of Cornelius staff and community organizations, and explained next steps for 
further engagement, analysis, and decision-making. Commissioner Fai inquired if the TV Highway Equity 
Coalition was assisting with informing the decision about central Cornelious station locations. Jess Zdeb 
responded that project staff had joint and individual meetings with Centro Cultural and Virginia Garcia 
Memorial Health Clinic, two major organizations that serve the Cornelius community. Mayor Dalin 
shared details and future development plans near three central Cornelius station locations (N 10th 
Avenue, N 12th Avenue, N 14th Avenue). Nansi Lopez applauded project staff for their work with local 
organizations, including Virginia Garcia Memorial Health Clinic, and noted that additional information is 
being gathered about serving central Cornelius station locations. 
 
Discussion (Councilor Juan Carlos González, Metro) 
The committee members were asked the following discussion question: 

• Do you have any questions or feedback for staff before voting on this recommendation in 
February? 

Members of the committee didn’t have any questions or feedback prior to voting on LPA 
recommendation in February meeting. 

  
Presentation: Cost, scope, and funding plan (Jess Zdeb, Metro, David Aulwes, TriMet) 
David Aulwes started presentation with a brief overview of project benefits, which included: 

• Crossings to all stations 
• Intersection safety 
• Shelters, lighting, boarding platforms 
• Increased speed and reliability 
• More frequent service 

 
He continued with an overview of cost, scope and funding plan, that consisted of the following 
elements: 

• Estimate is approximately $300M 
• Key project elements: 

o Eliminates partial pullout stop design and creates safer bus/bike interactions at stations 
o Station amenities and platforms at 41 station pairs 
o Accommodating UPRR requirements for station location 
o Four rebuilt intersections 
o 15 new vehicles, bus chargers, bus facility upgrade 



TV Highway Steering Committee Meeting Minutes from January 23, 2025 Page 4 
  

o 59 signal upgrades to accommodate transit signal priority 
o TV Highway would be upgraded to 12-minute bus service 

 
Jess Zdeb introduced funding strategy breakdown, which consisted of the following parts: 

• Federal Small Starts grant - $150M 
• State - $50M 
• Corridor partners - $65M 
• RFFA - $30M 
• Carbon Reduction Program - $5M 

 
She noted that funding sources are contingent upon jurisdiction/agency approval processes. She 
continued with an overview of the CIG Small Starts project timeline, including the anticipated next 
steps through Project Development and construction. Jess introduced the proposed funding agreement 
and asked the committee to review it and provide feedback prior to the February Steering Committee 
meeting. Next, she shared proposed LPA language and informed the committee about upcoming office 
hours, at which time project staff will be available to answer questions. 
 
Presentation: Engagement and decision-making next steps (Kate Hawkins, Metro, Bernadette Le, 
TriMet) 
Bernadette Le began with an overview of the post-LPA public process, which included: 

• Expanded community engagement 
o Web page, mailings, open houses, event tabling, etc. 

• Advisory committees 
o Community Advisory Committee 
o Policy & Budget Committee 

• Two geographically-based outreach staff 
• Continuing multi-jurisdictional collaboration 

 
She shared details pertaining to each advisory committee, which included the following: 
Community Advisory Committee 

• Diverse perspectives from residents, community organizations, businesses and property 
owners 

• Sounding board for design questions, outreach activities 
• Two-way communication; shared agenda setting 
• Advise staff and Policy & Budget Committee 

Policy & Budget Committee 
• One elected/executive from each partner jurisdiction, plus one CAC member 
• Advise project leadership 

 
Bernadette noted that advisory committees would help inform project details, progress, safety and 
access improvements. They would also provide local context and knowledge and share input on station 



TV Highway Steering Committee Meeting Minutes from January 23, 2025 Page 5 
  

and crossing configurations.  
 
Kate Hawkins introduced next steps for the project, which included: 
January/February 

• City Council/County Board presentations as requested 
February Steering Committee meeting 

• LPA & funding strategy approval 
Spring 2025 

• LPA adoption by local jurisdictions, approval by the TriMet Board, and endorsement by JPACT 
and Metro Council 

• IGA approvals to commit Project Development funds 
Summer 2025 

• Legislative session determines state contribution 
• Apply for admission to Project Development 

 
The committee inquired about what would happen if the project does not receive $150M in federal 
funding under the current administration. JC Vannatta, TriMet, responded that at this time it is 
unknown whether the grant money would be awarded or not. Kelly Betteridge, Metro, commented 
that prior to request for funds, a great portion of the project work would be completed and, at that 
point, partners will have more information to make decisions on pausing the project, moving forward, 
etc. 
 
Discussion (Councilor Juan Carlos González, Metro) 
The committee members were asked the following discussion question: 

• Do you have any clarifying questions about the next steps after LPA adoption? 

 
The committee members deliberated and discussed how funding committed between Summer 2025 
and Summer 2027 will be used to advance this project, and how design work can assist with moving the 
project forward if federal funding is not awarded. 
 
LPA temperature check (Councilor Juan Carlos González, Metro) 
Councilor González asked the committee to show their level of support for the staff LPA 
recommendation using red (I do not support this), yellow (I have concerns that will need to be 
addressed or am skeptical, but will not block this), or green (I support this) cards. 
 
All committee members displayed green cards, and included: Councilor Juan Carlos González, Metro, 
Councilor Gerritt Rosenthal, Metro, Councilor Brian Schimmel, City of Forest Grove, Councilor Ashley 
Hartmeier-Prigg, City of Beaverton, Mayor Jeffrey Dalin, City of Cornelius, Councilor Cristian Salgado, 
City of Hillsboro, Commissioner Nafisa Fai, Washington County, Rian Windsheimer, ODOT, JC Vannatta, 
TriMet, Je Ameichi, Unite Oregon, Nansi Lopez, Centro Cultural, Verónika Nuñez, Adelante Mujeres, 
Karmen Chavez-Sam, APANO. 

 
Public comment 



TV Highway Steering Committee Meeting Minutes from January 23, 2025 Page 6 
  

No public comment was submitted. 
 

Next steps (Councilor Juan Carlos González, Metro) 
Co-chair Gonzalez gave a brief summary of upcoming meetings. There being no further business, 
he adjourned the meeting at 5:49 p.m.  
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Yuliya Lee, TV Highway Steering Committee Recorder 



TV Highway Steering Committee Meeting Minutes from January 23, 2025 Page 7 
  

Attachments to the Public Record, TV Highway Steering Committee meeting, January 23, 2025 
 

Item DOCUMENT TYPE DOCUMENT DATE DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION DOCUMENT NO. 

 
1 

 
Agenda 

 
01/23/2025 

 
01/23/2025 TV Highway Steering Committee 
meeting agenda 

 
012325TVHSC-01 

2 
 

Document 
 

11/14/24 
 

11/14/24 TV Highway Steering Committee meeting 
minutes 

 
012325TVHSC-02 

  


	Agenda
	1/23/25 Meeting Minutes



